

KENTUCKY HEALTH DEPARTMENTS ASSOCIATION

BY-LAWS

Subject to the provisions and guidelines set forth in these by-laws, the Corporation shall function in the following manner:

ARTICLE I

NAME

The name of this body shall be the **Kentucky Health Departments Association, Inc.**

ARTICLE II

AUTHORITY

- A. Local health departments are established under the general provisions of Chapter 212 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.
- B. The Corporation has been established with the full knowledge of the Department for Public Health.
- C. The Corporation will advise the Department for Public Health and its staff of matters pertaining to the operation of a county, district, and/or independent health department.
- D. Reports of the Corporation's deliberations will be made to the Commissioner of the Department for Public Health, hereinafter referred to as "the Commissioner".

ARTICLE III

PURPOSE

The purpose of this Corporation shall be

- A. To improve Kentucky's health status.
- B. To foster and develop professional relationships to advance public health.
- C. To promote effective and efficient operations among local health departments through continuous quality improvement.
- D. To promote continuous improvement through identification of barriers within our existing operations, research and suggest solutions for improvement.
- E. To assure a competent public health workforce.
- F. To establish a framework for communicating effectively with the Department for Public Health, other state agencies, and other public health stakeholders.

ARTICLE IV

DEFINITIONS

- A. Public Health Department: A single county, district or independent health department that is governed by a Board of Health as established under Kentucky Revised Statutes.
- B. Corporate Membership: That person who serves as Public Health Director (or appointed alternate) of a public health department in Kentucky. Such member in good standing is entitled to one vote. The Commissioner for Public Health (or his designate) will be invited to be an ex-officio non-voting member.
- C. Officers: Those members elected President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer of the Board of Directors. The immediate Past President shall fill that office by virtue of being elected President and having completed said term.

Executive Committee: The officers of the Association and seven members of the Corporation. Four of the seven members represent a geographic region: East, West, North, and South and shall be elected by said members of each region. The regions and their respective members are listed in Appendix A. Three of the seven members will be at-large. The three at-large members will consist of one from a single county health department elected by the membership from single county health departments, one from a district health department elected by the membership from district health departments and one from an independent health department elected by the membership from independent health departments. The President of the Kentucky Public Health Association shall serve as an ex-officio non-voting member.

- D. Executive Director: That person who is to serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the organization and performs those duties as outlined in a published job description.

ARTICLE V

GOVERNANCE

- A. This Corporation shall be governed by the membership. The membership shall constitute the Board of Directors.
- B. When necessary, the Executive Committee may act on behalf of the membership. All official actions taken by the Executive Committee, on behalf of the membership, shall be subject to ratification by the membership at the next regular Corporation meeting. The Executive Committee shall review the Treasurer's Statements at least annually. A formal financial review may be recommended by the Executive Committee, or the Treasurer, at any time.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS/COMMITTEES/EMPLOYEES

Section 1: Election of Officers

- A. Any member in good standing is eligible to be an officer.
- B. Officers shall be elected bi-annually, in even numbered years, by the membership of the Corporation at the October meeting and assume office in January of the following year.

- C. Each such officer shall hold office at the will of the membership until he or she resigns, is removed (by three-quarters vote of membership in good standing), is otherwise disqualified to serve, or until a successor shall be elected and installed. In the event a vacancy occurs, the membership shall elect an officer to serve the remainder of the term.
- D. The term of all officers shall be for two (2) years. A member may serve one consecutive term in the same office for a total of four (4) years.

Section 2: Duties of Officers of the Board of Directors:

- A. **President:** The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, sign the records thereof, sign contracts and other papers executed on behalf of the Corporation, perform all duties generally performed by presidents of like and similar organizations, and such further duties as may be required by the membership. The President shall serve as Chair of the Executive Committee.
- B. **Vice-President:** The Vice-President shall perform all duties of the President in the event of the absence or disability of the President. In the event of the absence of both the President and the Vice- President, the Executive Committee may appoint a President Pro-tem. The Vice-President shall be responsible for the monthly program agenda.
- C. **Past-President:** The Past President shall be the most recent member holding the office of President after the newly elected President has been installed. The Past President shall serve as an advisor to the Executive Committee and shall chair the Legislative Committee.
- D. **Secretary:** The Secretary shall keep minutes of the proceedings of the Corporation, make proper record of same, and in general perform such other duties as may be required by the membership.

Treasurer: The Treasurer shall work with the KHDA staff on all monies collected by the Corporation, shall give a report monthly to the Corporation. The staff at the KHDA office will maintain proper records for all receipts and expenditures. The treasurer is responsible for working with the KHDA staff and Executive Committee on annual budget preparation.

Section 3: Nominating Committee:

- A. A nominating committee shall be appointed by the President of the Board of Directors.
- B. The nominating committee shall be composed of not less than three (3), nor more than five (5), members.
- C. The Committee shall solicit nominations from the KHDA membership for each of the officers excluding Past President as defined in Article IV, Paragraphs C & D. Each KHDA member has the right to make nominations for all positions to be filled. The Committee will present the nominations at the September KHDA meeting in even numbered years. Each office and committee post to be filled should have a minimum of 2 members nominated to fill that position. In the case there is only one member accepting nomination for a position, the member shall be elected to the position if they receive a simple majority (51%) of the vote from the voting members who represent a quorum of the organization. In the case the individual does not receive the required votes, the nomination committee shall solicit nominations again for the

position and hold another election process.

D. Nominations may be made from the floor before elections are held.

Section 4: Other Committees:

Other committees may be appointed from time to time by the President with the approval of the membership.

Section 5: Legislative Committee:

- A. The Legislative Committee shall be a standing committee of the Corporation.
- B. The Past President of the Corporation shall be Chairman of the Legislative Committee. In the event a Past President is no longer a member of the Corporation, the President shall appoint a Chairman of the Legislative Committee.
- C. The Legislative Committee shall be composed of not less than five (5), nor more than seven (7) members of the Corporation and shall be appointed by the President of the Corporation.
- D. The committee as outlined in Article VI, Section 5, Paragraph C, shall be in addition to the Past President of the Corporation.
- E. The Legislative Committee shall identify, track, and inform the membership of all legislative initiatives of interest, and shall engage in such other activities regarding legislation not in conflict with Article IV of the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 6: Executive Director:

- A. The Executive Director will carry out those duties assigned to him/her by the Executive Committee and/or the membership in addition to those standing duties as outlined in the position description attached to the employment contract.
- B. The Executive Director shall report directly to the President of the Corporation as required and shall update the membership on his/her activities monthly.
- C. The Executive Director shall serve under the term of the employment contract mutually agreeable to both parties.

ARTICLE VII

MEETINGS

- A. The membership shall meet monthly at a time and place designated by the membership.
- B. The President may call special meetings.

- C. Special meetings will be announced at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting date and notification of said meeting shall be sent out to all members via e-mail.
- D. In an emergency situation, the President may call a special meeting and waive prior notice provisions of Article VII (C); however, any action taken at such meeting must be affirmed at the next monthly meeting.
- E. Meetings shall be conducted according to Robert's Rules of Order.
- F. A quorum shall consist of at least 40% of the voting membership in good standing.
- G. Decisions of KHDA will be reached by consensus. Consensus is defined as each KHDA member having the opportunity to influence the final decision. Seventy five percent of the vote (meeting the quorum requirement) will be considered substantial agreement.
- H. The October meeting shall be the Annual Meeting of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VIII

DUES AND BUDGET

- A. Dues shall be assessed annually on an equitable basis as agreed upon by the membership in accordance with the approved budget, as prepared by the Treasurer and presented at the October Meeting.
- B. Special assessments may be levied equitably upon all members by a vote of the membership.
- C. Upon payment of such dues, a member shall be considered to be in good standing with all the rights and privileges pertaining thereto and as particularly provided for in Article IV (B).

ARTICLE IX

AMENDMENTS

The By-laws may be amended by majority vote of the members present, presuming there is a quorum. Written notice of any proposed change must be made available to each member not less than twenty (20) days prior to the next meeting.

ADOPTED BY KHDA: November 18, 2014